## FACTORS INFLUENCING THAI PEOPLE TO SELECTING INTERNATIONAL FLIGHTS OF LOW COST AIRLINES



## A THEMATIC PAPER SUBMITTED IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENTOF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF MASTER OF MANAGEMENT COLLEGE OF MANAGEMENT MAHIDOLUNIVERSITY 2014

## **COPYRIGHT OF MAHIDOL UNIVERSITY**

Thematic paper entitled FACTORS INFLUENCING THAI PEOPLE TO SELECTING **INTERNATIONAL FLIGHTS OF LOW COST AIRLINES** 

was submitted to the College of Management, Mahidol University for the degree of Master of Management

> on May 3, 2014

Asst. Prof. Parisa Rungruang,

Ph.D. Advisor

Assoc. Prof. Annop Tanlamai, Ph.D. Dean College of Management Mahidol University

Mr. Chaturon Yurawan Candidate

Dr. Kiattichai Kalasin, Ph.D. Chairperson

Dr. Astrid Kainzbauer, Ph.D. Committee member

## ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Firstly, I would like to express my gratitude to College of Management, Mahidol University and the teacher team for providing me the valuable knowledge in a peaceful environment.

I deeply thank my advisor, Asst. Prof. Dr. Parisa Rungruang, who kindly supervises and gives me the excellent suggestion, guidance, and encouragement all the times during my research writing. I cannot complete this research without her consistent advice.

I appreciate any help of the staffs at university office and at library during my study in the university.

Next, I would like to thank all of my friends; part-time students in 15A, 15B and 15C program who always being beside me, sharing their knowledge, information, and encouragement during the research. I really appreciate their help and friendship.

Lastly, the special thanks go to my family for your unconditional support continuously in whatever I do, and wherever I stay.

שנים אני שייי

Chaturon Yurawan

## FACTORS INFLUENCING THAI PEOPLE TO SELECTING INTERNATIONAL FLIGHTS OF LOW COST AIRLINES

CHATURON YURAWAN 5549142

M.M. (ENTREPRENEURSHIP MANAGEMENT)

THEMATIC PAPER ADVISORY COMMITTEE : ASST. PROF. PARISA RUNGRUANG, Ph.D., DR. KIATTICHAI KALASIN Ph.D., DR. ASTRID KAINZBAUER, Ph.D.

#### ABSTRACT

Today, Low-cost Carriers (LCCs) are considered fast growing sector in many developing countries, especially in Asia - the most populous continent in the world. Its quick expansion is directly linked to rapid economic growth and fast growing numbers of population which engage in business activities and demand to travel to remote locations within short timeframe. Such factors have also influenced Thai people to select the most affordable LCCs that offers international flights whether the traveller's goal is for business trip or vacation. Therefore, the objective of this research is to identify factors that influence Thai people to select LCCs which offer international flights. The research findings can be used as an industry insights analysis and guidelines for market planning and strategy formulation purposes in order to ensure customer satisfaction and brand loyalty in the long run.

The researcher selected samples based on a group of people who have travelled via LCCs. In this research series of in-depth interview were conducted with 16 Thai respondents who have travelled abroad by using LCCs at least once. The age group of respondents range from 22-31 years old. Samples were chosen based on purposive sampling method

This research study revealed that "price" was one of the most influential factors for selecting LCCs that offers international flights. Destination availability, type of an operating flight and crew's service are viewed as secondary factors that exert influence on travellers. In addition, the other potential factors that could have influential impact on travellers are the size of seat and reputation of food service and new experiences on board the plane such as entertainment.

KEY WORDS: LCCs / Thai people / international flight / key driver/ Thailand 32 pages

## CONTENTS

ACKNOWLED	GEMENTS	ii
ABSTRACT		iii
LIST OF TABL	LES	vi
CHAPTER I	INTRODUCTION	1
CHAPTER II	LITERATURE REVIEW	3
2.1	Introduction of Low cost carriers (LCCs)	3
2.2	LCCs and Passenger movement in Thailand	3
2.3	LCCs offering to customer	5
2.4	Consumer's expectation theory	5
2.5	Satisfaction theory	6
2.6	Marketing mix theory	6
2.7	Marketing mix in airline industry	6
2.8	Related research	7
	2.8.1 Price	8
	2.8.2 Place	8
	2.8.3 Product	8
	2.8.4 Promotion	8
	2.8.5 People	9
	2.8.6 Process	9
	2.8.7 Physical evidence	9
CHAPTER III	METHODOLOGY	11
3.1	Research design	11
3.2	Population and sample	11
3.3	Research Instrument	12
3.4	Data analysis	13
CHAPTER IV	<b>RESULT AND DISCUSSION</b>	15
4.1	Demographic Data	15

Page

4.2 Da	ta Analys	sis	15
4.3 Di	scussion		18
	4.3.1	Price dimension	18
	4.3.2	Place dimension	18
	4.3.3	Product dimension	19
	4.3.4	People dimension	20
	4.3.5	Promotion dimension	21
	4.3.6	Process dimension	22
	4.3.7	Physical evidence	23
CHAPTER V RI	ECOMM	ENDATIONS AND LIMITATIONS	24
5.1 Re	commen	lations	24
5.2 Lir	nitations	of the study	25
5.3 Su	<mark>gge</mark> stions	for Future Research	26
<b>REFERENCES</b>			27
BIOGRAPHY			32

v

## LIST OF TABLES

Tab	le	Page
4.1	Seven attribute towards Thai customers decision to buy low cost airlines product for international route.	16
4.2	The respondents' prioritized factors	17

# CHAPTER I INTRODUCTION

At present commercial airline industry has generated large amount of income and it has promoted economic growth in many developing and developed countries across the world. This is because airline industry allows people from all over the world to comfortably connect with another within a short timeframe. In particular, air transportation has been developed and enhanced in order to meet consumers' high expectation, especially in terms convenience, speed and service quality. Majority of consumers, when choosing transportation and communication services, make their purchase decisions based on wide variety of factors such as airfare rate, airline reputation and service quality. In contrast, many airline companies need to cut its costs in order to stay competitive and to acquire higher returns. In the old days, air transportation was an expensive choice of traveling due to its limited resources and unique cost structure. However, competition has changed airline industry across the world. Many air transportation providers constantly change their marketing strategies and have been trying to lower its costs in order to meet consumers' demands and expectation. It was first introduced by Southwest Airline (SWA) in the United States in 1971 (Chowdhury, 2007). The success of SWA led to a fast spread of the LCC model in Europe and then to Asia. Low-cost carriers (LCCs) has been popular for over a decade and it is considered a strategic move for airline business, especially when airline company tries to reduce irrelevant expenses such as in-flight entertainment and catering services. This way air tickets can be offered at competitive price. Moreover, tickets can be sold in advance via the internet so that airline company can efficiently manage flight schedules and minimize risk of empty seats.

Nowadays, there are 512 airline companies across the world. In Thailand, there are 108 airlines operating at six international airports which are Suvarnabhumi, Don Mueang, Chiang Mai, Hat Yai, Phuket and Mae Fah Luang-Chiang Rai (AOT annual report, 2013). Moreover, more than 40 airline companies are operating in the

form of low-cost airline which offers international flights. In a highly competitive business environment, especially Low-Cost Carriers segment, providing high quality service with minimal costs in order to satisfy passengers satisfaction is considered the main core competitive advantage that help airline companies to generate profit and promote sustained development (Lu and Ling, 2008). While previous studies revealed factors that influenced customer to select domestic low-cost airline include customer's expectation and satisfaction (Charoensettasilp and Wu, 2012), attitude and needs (Charoensettasilp and Wu, 2012), satisfaction and loyalty (Qin and Foosiri, 2013, Sarker, Hossan and Zaman, 2012), electronics Word-of-Mouth (Lerrthaitrakul and Panjakajornsak, 2013), customer's perception of LCCs (O'Connell and Williams, 2005). Apart from the abovementioned comments, no study has investigated other factors which exert influence on Thai people who select low-cost airline which offers international flights for their travel. Therefore, this research aims at identifying factors that exerts influence Thai people to select low-cost airline for their international travel. The research findings can be applied directly to and served as basic insights and guidelines for market planning in order to ensure customer satisfaction, profitability, risk minimization and brand loyalty in the long run.

10 H B

E B J J B B

# CHAPTER II LITERATURE REVIEW

### 2.1 Introduction of Low cost carriers (LCCs)

Low-cost Carrier (LCC) or low-cost airline is an airline that generally offers low airfares rate and fewer comforts. To make up for revenue lost in decreased ticket prices, the airline may charge for extras like food, priority boarding, seat allocating, and baggage etc. (Qin and Foosiri, 2013)

The term, originated within the airline industry, tends to refer to airlines with a low operating cost structure as compared to its competitors. While the term is often applied to airline companies which offer low airfares rate and limited services, regardless of their operating models, LCC should not be confused with regional airlines that operate short flights, or those full-service airlines that offer low airfares, but use large size aircraft to transport large numbers of people.

In due course, some airlines have actively sought to market and advertise themselves as low-cost, budgeted, or discount airlines while maintaining service quality at the minimum standard, usually associated with traditional mainline carrier's services which often result in increased operational complexity. These products tend to increase complexity, reduce operational efficiency and are not preferred by many truly low-cost airlines. Some of complex services offered are, for instance, luxury seating, vast choices of beverages, differentiated premium cabins, satellite communication, ground based WiFi internet service, and in-flight audio and video entertainment.

## 2.2 LCCs and Passenger movement in Thailand

During the fourth quarter of 2003, low-cost airlines started to emerge in Thailand due to the rising popularity of air transportation (AOT annual report, 2012). At that time, ticket price of such airlines were relatively similar to those of other modes of transportation. Wide variety of benefits offered by low-cost airlines include expanded domestic aviation market, shortened traveling time, enhanced domestic tourism business, and boosted numbers of Thai and foreign tourists, etc. Hence, more and more investors and frequent air travelers are now interested in low-cost airlines.



Source: Airports of Thailand, Air transport statistic (2014) Figure 2.1 The LCCs passenger Movement



Source: Airports of Thailand, Air transport statistic (2014) Figure 2.2 The LCCs Aircraft Movement

Figure 1 showed the trend of LCCs passenger travelling by air transportation. The left side of the Y-axis is the numbers of passenger. Figure 2 showed the trend of LCCs aircraft movement. The right side of the Y-axis is the numbers of flights (AOT aircraft statistic, 2014).

The LCCs's passengers are expected to reach three million passengers by 2014, and more than twenty thousand LCCs's flights are expected to serve these airline passengers at six International Airports across Thailand by the end of 2014.

しいぼ

## 2.3 LCCs offering to customer

Traditionally, LCCs based its value proposition on low prices and low fees. Low prices and low fees are not enough (Boer and Browning, 2013). An increase in competition, coupled with the growing focus on business travelers, has led LCCs to test its new business models including forming airline alliances, operating long-haul, and offering more products and services to meet their customer's expectation, satisfaction while gaining a sense of loyalty from the customers.

## 2.4 Consumer's expectation theory

Expectation means attitudes related to desire or demand that consumers expect to receive from each service. Consumers make purchasing decisions to meet specific demands and consumers will evaluate results of purchase from expectations (Berry et al., 1990).

Demands arise from human subconscious which resulted in each individual well-being and status. When consumers demand products or services, there must be motivational factors as well as expectation to meet such demand. The three factors of consumer's own expectations are word-of-mouth communication, personal needs, and past experiences. The other factor includes external communication made to the customers. These factors all affect customer's expectations (Zeithaml et al., 1990). Customer's expectations can be divided into 2 levels: Expected level of services and past level of services. The first level arises from customer's expectations, whereas the second level will be accepted if customers receive the same services as before (Zeithaml

et al., 1985). Five factors affecting service receivers are word-of-mouth or advice from others, personal demand, past experiences, news from media and service providers and prices.

### 2.5 Satisfaction theory

Sureerat (1995) stated that satisfaction means contentment when demand is met. A supporting satisfaction theory is Maslow's Hierarchy of Needs which stated that human needs are in a pyramid shape-once one need is satisfied; another need will be desired in a higher level (Maslow, 1943). Campbell (1976) stated that satisfaction is internal feelings, especially when each individual compares their thoughts to expectation or desired situation. Whether or not the results are satisfied is based on a personal judgment.

### 2.6 Marketing mix theory

Marketing mix is the tool that organizations apply to achieve marketing objective among target groups. It consists of product, price, place, promotion, people, physical evidence and process. Marketing mix is the motivation that influences the decision of consumers to use the product or service (Kotler, 2003).

612

## 2.7 Marketing mix in airline industry

People services are deeds, processes and performance. Service is distinguished from products mainly because they are generally produced at the same time as they are consumed and cannot be stored away or taken. An enhanced marketing mix needs to be deployed. It is not only about reaching out to the customers with the right service, but it is also about creating that right desire to the service (Charoensettasilp and Wu, 2012).

4P's of marketing mix and 3P's of service marketing mix for airline industry consist of product, place, price, promotion, people, process and physical

evidence. (1) Firstly, product mix will consider design, quality, range, brand name and product features. In order to empower the "Product" to attract consumers, especially among service providers, airline company must consider that fact that consumers are demanding not just the physical products or features of products, but it should consider quality of the service and the benefits it offered. The airline product includes two types of service which are on-the-ground and in-flight services. (2) Place takes into consideration distribution channels, methods of distribution, coverage, demographic, on-line reservation system and consolidation between tour operators and travel agent. (3) Price is targeting at a list of current prices, discounts, commissions, surcharges, extra service charge, economic pricing, and valuable pricing. (4) Promotion takes into account advertising strategy which airline company needs to keep in mind such as its image, positioning, image of the country, the scenic beauty, tourist attractions, rich cultural heritages or those that attract foreign and local tourists, publicity, receptionist and travel agents. (5) People consists of crew members who possess competence, reliability, ethics and codes of conduct, caring attitude, responsiveness, initiative, capacity to solve problem and goodwill. (6) Process takes into account shortening reservation process (i.e. mobile application), flight information, and facilities at the airport, luggage handling, catering service, in-flight entertainment and quality service. (7) Last but not least, physical evidence takes into account on-the-ground and in-flight components which are ticket booking offices or ticket counter, paperwork, brand and official logo, airfares, aircraft, seating configuration, good interior and exterior design, cleanliness, crew's uniform, ambience, baggage, and labels or tags. (Ghosh, 2009).

### 2.8 Related research

According to previous study which studied 7Ps marketing mix (i.e., price, place, promotion, people, process and physical evidence) that affect consumer's decision to select domestic low-cost airline (Chareonsettasilp & Wu, 2012; Lerrthaitrakul & Panjakajornsak, 2013; O'Connell & Williams, 2005; Qin & Foosiri, 2013; Sarker, Hossan & Zaman, 2012)

#### **2.8.1 Price**

Price is the monetary value of the products and services. A customer is likely to compare the value and price of service, and decide to purchase if the value exceed price. Therefore, service fee charged should be clearly determined in correspond to service level so that the customers can understand its difference. Moreover, a service provider must concern about non-monetary expense, including time spent in service, unfavorable physical and mental conditions, and dissatisfaction due to under-expected service (Charoensettasilp and Wu 2012, Qin and Foosiri 2013).

### 2.8.2 Place

Place is the environment of service that affects perception of the customers in terms of value and benefits of offerings. Place is referred to the location and channel for delivering service. Important factors of service delivery include location, speed, and convenience in which preliminary service can be offered through email or website (Charoensettasilp and Wu 2012). It is clear that passengers travelling on low-cost carriers place great importance on price and appear to arrange their itineraries using the least expensive airfares (O'Connell and Williams, 2005).

### 2.8.3 Product

Product can fulfill the needs and requirements of people as seller offer product to the customer, and customer gain benefits and value of such products. Commonly, product is categorized into 2 groups which are tangible product and intangible product. Management must select main and additional services that properly satisfy customer needs and remain competitive against those of competitors (Charoensettasilp and Wu 2012).

### 2.8.4 Promotion

Promotion is the communication tool that informs or motivates customers to have particular attitude and behaviors and promotion becomes the key factor of relationship marketing. Products without proper communication are likely to fail. Communication plays important role in conveying information to customers, promote the possible benefits, and stimulate purchase. Key benefits of communication in service marketing focus on sharing customers how they gain benefits from service, when, where, and how to purchase a service (Charoensettasilp and Wu 2012).

#### 2.8.5 People (employees)

This factor requires recruitment, training, and motivation to be capable of creating better customer satisfaction than competitors do. It is about the relationship between service provider and customer, so employees must be competent and possess an attitude to respond to customers, problem-solving skills, be creative and be able to create value to the organization. Many services require the involvement of both customer and employee, such as barber service (Charoensettasilp and Wu 2012).

### 2.8.6 Process

Process refers to practice guidelines, rules and regulations and standard procedures which ensure safety, accurate and quick services. It may also include reservation process, flight information, facilities at the airport, safety procedure, baggage handling process, catering service and in-flight entertainment.

### 2.8.7 Physical evidence

Physical evidence and presentation offer quality service in terms of neat attire, polite communication, ethical practice, quick service, and others benefits that customers deserve, to ensure quality, appropriateness, and efficiency. These factors include building, equipment, cloths and etc.

All of 7Ps are directly linked to customer's satisfaction. Finally, decision making process is the final step that customer will take when selecting domestic low-cost airlines. Customer satisfaction is defined as "overall effective response to a perceived discrepancy between prior expectation and perceived performance after consumption" (Oliver, 1980, p. 460). Service marketing mix (7Ps) factors have positive effect on passenger satisfaction, service quality factors also have a positive effect on passenger satisfaction (Qin and Foosiri 2013). Place, Product, Process and People mostly affect Thai passengers' satisfaction after receiving services from Thailand's domestic low-cost airline, including ground service at the airport. The aircraft used for commercial travel must have gone through standard safety check procedure and

verification process set forth by airline industry. Promotion such as special privileges (i.e. passenger lounge), mileage program, special privilege for baggage weight, convenience and quick speed for check-in process, convenience and speed of baggage claim, and convenience and speed of preparing for flight departure. Follow by physical evidence and price respectively, while promotion is among the bottom ranking (Sittichai and Wu, 2012). Last but not least, consumer's decision making process is the most important factor that offers award to the airline company. Customers' satisfaction must be measured and recorded at the end of the flight in order to evaluate service quality. The marketing main factors such as product, price, place, promotion, people, process and physical evidence are highly correlated with customer' buying-decision of low-cost airline (Udomkitti 2006, Thanasupsin and Chaichana 2007).

As mentioned earlier, no study has investigated low-cost airline that offers international routes. Therefore, this research objective is to conduct a study on factors influencing Thai people to select low-cost airline which offers international flights. The result of this research study serves as basic insights and guidelines for market planning purposes which attempt to fulfill customer satisfaction and increase LCCs brand loyalty in the long run.

843

193308

# CHAPTER III RESEARCH METHODLOGY

111

## 3.1 Research design

This research will use qualitative design approach which is a scientific research methodology, and it can defined as primary an inductive process of organizing the data into categories and identifying patterns (relationships) in each category (McMillan and Schumacher, 1993) or a strategy, is predicated on underlying assumptions and perspectives (Wiersma, 1995).

The main goal of this research is to provide a meaningful understanding of and insight into low-cost airline segment in Thailand as well as describes customer's experiences, ideas, beliefs and values of customer who have used LCC for international travel purposes. The findings can be used as an input for strategy formulation and market planning purposes. Such insight information is directly linked to an in-depth understanding of consumer behavior, especially frequent international travelers and profitable routes that LCC should pay attention to.

### **3.2 Population and sample**

In this research, the researcher selects samples based on travelling experience of the sample group. Selected individual sample must have at least one travelling trip with LCC's international flight. The research process involves an indepth interview with 16 interviewees who are willing to share their flying experience in this research study. Age of an interviewee ranges between 20-35 years old. Samples will be chosen by using purposive sampling method.

Purposive sampling is an informant selection tool widely used in ethnobotany. However, the use of the method is not adequately explained in most studies. The purposive sampling technique, also called judgment sampling, is the deliberate choice of an informant due to the qualities the informant possesses. It is a nonrandom technique that does not need underlying theories or a set number of informants. Simply put, the researcher decides what needs to be known and sets out to find people who can and are willing to provide the information by virtue of knowledge or experience (Bernard 2002, Lewis & Sheppard 2006).

ปปมิ

## **3.3 Research Instrument**

In applying qualitative and purposive sampling method in this research paper, informal interview with sample was chosen because an interview will enable face-to-face discussion with an experienced customers who have used LCC for their international travel. Therefore, note taking and voice recording were used during the interview session. In addition to face-to-face discussion, the researcher also used telephone interview which is popular way too (Kvale, 1983). Ten interviewees were scheduled within two weeks of an interview process. This study employed both types of closed- and open-ended questions. In-depth interview questions are optimal for collecting data on individuals' personal histories, perspective and experiences, particularly when sensitive topics are being explored (Denzin et al, 2000).

In order to analyze the result of research findings for low-cost airlines that offer the international flights, a list of open-ended interview questions were formulated and used with 10 interviewees. Regarding open-ended interviews questions, interviewees are being asked to feel relax and free to provide as much as possible their responses as well as express their opinions. It is more effective than simply use interview questions likes "yes" or "no" (Denzin et al, 2000). A list of interview questions are shown below:

➤ How often per year do you travel aboard?

How long have you started planning to travel aboard?

> Do you know how the difference between low-cost airlines and fullservice airlines?

➤ What do you think about low-cost airlines?

- ➤ How do you feel when you are using low-cost airlines?
- Have you ever travelled abroad by using low-cost airlines?
- > Which low-cost airlines that you have used before?
- How often do you book your flight?

> What are some of the factors or criteria that influence you to select lowcost airlines for international route?

Could you please share your experience flying with low-cost airline? Is it good? Or does it need to improve?

- > Could you please share your expectation toward low-cost airlines?
- > Are you interested in the outcome of the low-cost airline research?

In addition to demographic information of low-cost airline's passenger who entered interview session conducted by researcher, the main focus of an interview is on age, gender, educational background, income and passenger's lifestyle. Voice recording and reflective note taking are being used to record the information as well. The result of interview was processed in April, 2014. In order to categorize an interview and interpret the information obtained from each interviewee, an interview session was set at the minimum of 30 minutes. The complete set of interview questions is listed in the appendix.

- > What is your education background?
- > What is your favorite activity when you have free time?
- How much is your salary?
- ➢ How old are you?

### **3.4 Data analysis**

In order to analyze the information, content analysis methodology was used and applied in this research. Content analysis technique is a widely used in qualitative research. Rather than using a single method, current applications of content analysis shows three distinct approaches: conventional, directed and summative. All three approaches are used to interpret the meaning of the content of text data and, hence, adhere to the naturalistic paradigm. The major differences among these approaches are coding schemes, origins of codes, and threats to trustworthiness. In conventional content analysis, coding categories are derived directly from the text data. With a directed approach, analysis starts with a theory or relevant research findings as guidance for initial codes. A summative content analysis involves counting and comparisons, usually the keywords or content, followed by the interpretation of the underlying context. Therefore all approaches were used by research analyst for interpreting data appropriately (Hsieh and Shannon, 2005).



# CHAPTER IV RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

This research is a study of "Factors influencing Thai people to select lowcost airlines that offer international flights". This section focuses on the analysis of general data in order to present the research outcome in terms of key influences that entice Thai customers to make purchase decision and to elaborate their satisfaction level toward service offered by low-cost airlines. Information used in the research analysis is based on an interview conducted on 16 interviewees. The research analysis reveals the following results:

## 4.1 Demographic Data

The total of 16 respondents is divided into 8 females and 8 males. The youngest respondent is 22 years old and the oldest respondent is 31 years old. There are 12 respondents who are between 22-29 years old and 4 respondents who are 30-31 years old. Ten of respondent are currently master-degree students, and the remaining 6 have graduated with bachelor degree. Twelve respondents are office workers, and the other 4 are unemployed.

## 4.2 Data Analysis

With regard to factors listed in the dimensions of 7Ps marketing mix namely price, place, product, promotion, people, process and physical evidence, sixteen Thai consumers were interviewed regarding factors that exert influence on the selection of low-cost airlines that offer international flights. They are listed below. Table 4.1 Seven attribute towards Thai customers decision to buy low cost airlinesproduct for international route.

Price	Product	Place	Promotion	People	Process	Physical evidence
Cheap price	Type of an aircraft	Main operate hub	Pre-reservation discount	Crew's service attitude	Easy to reserv the ticket online	Small booking office
Resonable price	Type of seat	Destination avaibility	Travelling package	Pilot's skill	Quick check-in	Limit of check-in counter
Promotion price	Size of seat		Seasonal discount	Quick service	Calling check-in	Exciting brand's signature
	Safety concern		Accomodation discount		Good webpage design	
	Flight frequency					
	Food during flight					
	Limit of luggage's weight					
	Additional fee		-			
	Direct flight			71 39		

After grouping all information into seven attributes, several elements were categorized according to responses provided by interviewees (Please see Table 4.1).

Based on series of interview conducted on interviewees, it appears that all respondents prioritized their purchasing decision based on popular key factors such as airfares and their past experiences. If low-cost carriers provide service below respondents' expectation and industry standards, the respondents will change their mind and choose other low-cost airlines immediately. The most important factor among top three factors is the airfares charged to the consumers. Every respondent who used to travel with low-cost airline tends to buy air tickets because it is affordable. Table 4.2 demonstrates factors that each respondent considered their priority when buying plane ticket.

Respondents	1st Ranking	2nd Ranking	3rd Ranking
1	Price	Destination availability	Size of seat
2	Price	Destination availability	Flight frequency
3	Price	Destination availability	Direct flight
4	Price	Size of seat	Destination availability
5	Destination availability	Price	Crew's service
6	Price	Destination availability	Size of seat
7	Price	Destination availability	Crew's service
8	Price	D <mark>e</mark> stination availability	Crew's service
9	Price	Crew's service	Quick check-in
10	Direct flight	Price	Destination availability
11	Price	Destination availability	Direct flight
12	<mark>De</mark> stination availability	Price	Direct flight
13	Price	Destination availability	Flight frequency
14	Price	Direct flight	Destination availability
15	Price	Destination availability	Direct flight
16	Price	Destination availability	Crew's service

 Table 4.2 The respondents' prioritized factors

Ticket price ranks first in the table when respondents prioritize factors that exert influence their purchasing decision, followed by availability of flight destination, crew's service quality and direct flight respectively.

Regarding the ticket price, more than 81% of respondents expect low ticket price from LCC because it fits in with their budget constraint. In terms of availability of destination, more than 69% of respondents expect LCC to offers key destinations that best meet their travel goals. Both crew's service quality and direct flight ranked third according to 25% of respondents. Therefore, all of the abovementioned information can be referred to the first priority such as low ticket price which exerts influence on Thai's customer to select low-cost airline that offers international route. These group of customer want to save their budget as much as they possibly can in order to meet their budget constraints. The availability of flight destination of low-cost airlines can simply provide customer with choices and these group of customer also expect low-cost airline to provide them with the lowest price possible. Last but not least, after they consider the ticket's price and availability of flight destination, then, the customer will look at factor such as service convenience. They expect crew members to provide them with quick and quality services, good facilities and in-flight satisfaction (i.e. entertainment and quick catering service). These group of customer also prefer direct flight instead of connecting flight because it can save them time and energy.

## 4.3 Discussion

### 4.3.1 Price dimension

Price ranks first among factors that exerts influence on respondents' decision making, especially when selecting low-cost airline that offers international route. This finding is relevant of the first factor that influence Thai's consumers who select domestic low-cost airline. Price and promotion are among the bottom ranking (Charoensettasilp and Wu, 2012). Based on the interviewed data, the standard price



charged to the customer must be cheaper than full-service airline. All respondents agreed with above statement, for instance, one of the respondents said, "*I have selected low-cost airline to travel aboard because I prefer cheap ticket price in order to decrease my overall travel expenses.*" Moreover, some of them consider the ticket's price first before considering the flight destination. If the ticket price is affordable and the destination is made available by low-cost airline, then they are likely to choose such low-cost airline which provide the cheapest ticket price.

### 4.3.2 Place dimension

Place is one of the first factors that exerts influence on Thai's people to select low-cost airline which offers domestic route, (Charoensettasilp and Wu, 2012).

While, in this research analysis, availability of destination also includes main operating hub of each airline. This data analysis shows that place was ranked second while most of the respondents consider the availability of flight destination after they got the price of the ticket sorted out. Sometimes the customers already have their destination that they wanted to go, but if the ticket price is not affordable, then they would simply find a bargaining ticket price offered by other low-cost airlines that could provide them with the most affordable ticket price. Moreover, some of respondents mentioned about the importance of the main operating hub of low-cost carriers. They believe that the lowcost airlines which operate at Donmuang International Airport offer much easier access to travelers as compared to Suvarnabhumi International Airport which located far from central Bangkok. Suvarnabhumi International Airport tends to have complicated process and place airline's check-in counters far away from the boarding gate. Passengers have to prepare themselves at least 2-3 hours before the boarding time as compared to Donmutang International Airport which takes about 1-1.5 hours to get the passengers on board the plane. Some of respondents said "Suvarnabumi Airport are clouded with people and I have to arrive at the airport at least 3 hours before check-in process and boarding time, but at Donmuang Airport, it only takes 1 hour".



### **4.3.3 Product dimension**

In term of product, respondents prefer standardized products (i.e. modern aircraft, quality of service, etc). They spend quite a lot of time on issues such as size of an aircraft, size of seat, food service, safety features and protocol, direct flight, connecting flight and luggage weight limit, etc. All respondents prefer big aircraft, bigger seat, more personal space, quality food service, better service from on-theground and in-flight crews and etc. Ultimately, these items are just the customer's expectations that most consumers expect to receive from LCC as well as full-service airlines. Consumers make purchasing decisions that best meet their specific demands, financial constraints and consumers' expectations. They will evaluate the results of purchase from expectations (Berry et al., 1990). All of them already know that the lowcost airline is different from full-service airlines. Therefore, all of them believe that it is acceptable if the price is affordable and the flight duration is short. Product dimension, therefore, could have a direct impact on the customer's decision making process when selecting low-cost airline. However, respondents think low-cost airline could further improve their products and services, especially when competition is intensifying. This way consumers will be empowered to choose and receive more benefits for airline industry. One of the respondents mentioned that, "Nowadays, there are many low-cost carriers such as, Nokair, AirAsia, JinAir, JetStar and new comers are AirAsia Go and LionAir. All of these airlines are offering international route from Thailand to other countries such as Japan and Malaysia. They compete against each other by offering discount and convenience services."



#### **4.3.4 People dimension**

Crew's service mind and pilot skills are considered one of the most important components of people dimension. All of them prefer airline crew members to possess a service mind and interpersonal skills. But evidently, respondents did not expect too much because it is low-cost carrier. Most respondents prefer crew members to have some sense of respect instead of being aggressive or completely ignore customer's requests. While few respondents talked about pilot's skills, but they also believe that LCC pilot's skill is not much different from those pilots who works on other commercial airlines. They said, "Pilot is a licensed pilot, they earn some sense of trust from airline company. These pilots are required to possess license and pass standardized health check." Ultimately, pilot's skills and health condition are not customer's priority when selecting low-cost carrier.



### **4.3.5 Promotion dimension**

Promotion is the communication tool that informs or motivates customers to have particular attitude and behaviors and promotion becomes the key factor of relationship marketing. Products without proper communication are likely to fail to capture customer's attention. Communication plays important role in conveying information



to customers, promote possible benefits and stimulate purchase (Kotler and Keller,

2006). All respondents mentioned about low-cost airline promotion being offered through on and off the Internet depending on business environment and competitive landscape. Some of them like to make a reservation at least 2-3 months before travelling date; this is because they need the cheapest ticket rate and they already planned out their vacation ahead of time. Some of them had booked a flight during seasonal promotion. Sometime they booked the ticket that comes with travelling package or special discount on accommodation and car rental. But some respondent said, "Low-cost airline cannot provide special benefits throughout the year." Therefore airline promotion is merely short-term or seasonal, but promotional package which encourages the customers to travel aboard more could come in the form of "mileage points". These customers knew that they have to travel during such period; therefore they tend to book a flight ahead of time and many of them tend to use collected mileage to minimize their travel expenses. However, some customers prefer to purchase regular ticket without any discount because they have no time to wait for airline promotion. This is because they have little time to make a decision before embarking on a trip.

### 4.3.6 Process dimension

Booking plane ticket and ground service (i.e. check-in procedure) are considered important elements of process dimension according to all respondents. Once they are satisfied with the booking process, all respondents is likely to book the ticket online because it is very convenient. Some of them like low-cost airline webpage because it provides user friendly interface and services as well as secure access. Online check-in procedure are well appreciated by some respondents because it helps them save time. The LCC's check-in procedure is much quicker than full-service airline by at least five to ten minutes on average. They said, "*I used to go aboard by Thai Airways and I have to wait in line for check-in around 30 minutes. But when I went to Singapore last month by AirAsia, it took me less than 10 minutes to check-in*".

Auhcadea.com	Inclusion of the second second
Hot Holiday Deals!	In XIAN
	100
1 mar 100	
E unite E anno 1	Contraction of the
A	And and the second seco
And a second sec	Subsection and the second second
table, the second barries	MALLEN BALL
BOX IP FOR OUR SHALL FORSULT THAN	Access Street Prop. 7

## 4.3.7 Physical evidence

Airline's service office and branding are two important elements in physical evidence. Few respondents mentioned this factor, but they think some branches of low-cost airline are too

small. Some of them think that the check-in counter was limited in numbers. But such limitation did not cause too much problem at check-in counter and small branch office because some customers already use online check-in process which shorten the timeframe, therefore, there is no need to spend twenty minutes at the counter service. Branding is another important



factor that reflects reputation and quality of service. Respondents believe that low-cost airline branding is becoming more attractive than full-service airline. They said, "*I think when I saw* AirAsia, Lion Air or NokAir logo, they are more colorful and more attractive than full-service airline such as Thai Airways or Singapore Airline".

### **CHAPTER V**

## **RECOMMENDATIONS AND LIMITATIONS OF THE STUDY**

## 5.1 Recommendations

The Low-cost Carriers (LCCs) are a growing sector in many developing countries today, especially in Asia – a region that has the largest population in the world. Its expansion is linked with rapid economic growth and an increasing numbers of populations which demand to travel and conduct businesses. The main factors that exert influence on Thai people to select low-cost airlines which offer international flights are the airfare and quality service. Such factors are the main key drivers that entice people to select air transportation for business and vacation trip over land or sea transportations.

The findings of this research study reveal the fact that cheap airfare is the main reason that entice customers to select Low-cost Carriers (LCCs) for their international travel as compared to Full-service Carriers (FSCs). However, LCCs are definitely not low in term of service quality. For the availability of destination, product's components such as quality customer service is considered an important factor for LCC's sustainability whose focus is on cost reduction at all times (Hardy, 2009). As for the price dimension, an alliance with network carriers is beneficial to LCCs as they facilitate travel at lower cost, especially for international passengers who travel regularly by using domestic routes. Such frequent travel has enabled LCC to acquire more market share while reduce its initial costs of route development. On the other hands, an alliance with network of carriers is considered beneficial in terms of other market dimensions such as place, product and promotion which contributed to brand enhancement. Better flight management could help LCC increase its flight frequency, choices of destination and joint promotion with other members of carrier network.

For people and process dimensions, LCCs could benefit from these opportunities only if they develop their capacities and competencies by providing training sessions for crew members such as those crew members who work on-board and at ground service. These crew members could be trained to enhance their serviceminded attitude. Furthermore, they could reduce work process by implementing new technologies which aims to reduce work process such mobile application which allows customer to verify their identities and check-in online in order to minimize congestion at the airport. An implementation of this strategy will enable LCC to utilize its existing resources efficiently while avoiding any disruption that may occur and affect the reputation of the LCC. Brand signage and counter service are two important components for brand building. This is because brand signage and counter service tend to communicate LCC information directly to the customers at the front level, therefore it must effectively represents positive image (i.e. professional) as well as remains attractive to customers who enjoy low airfare. They may have solid plan to improve their aircraft color or the tone of signage by revamp aircraft design as well as service offering (i.e. promotional package according to travel season.) Other improvements include offering of fresh fruits for short destination flights and internet service.

### **5.2 Limitations of the study**

The findings of the study should be viewed in light of the following limitations. First, numbers of respondent are small in size where (N=16) and the age group ranges between (22-31) years old. Second, the sampling group in this study mostly have travelled aboard at least once by three main low-cost airline companies such as Air Asia, Lion Air and THAI Smile. All of which are currently operating in Thailand. Moreover, an interview session is set at a minimum of 30 minutes in order to acquire qualitative information from respondents. Therefore, the sampling group had to spend a descent time to provide their responses as well as comments and opinions during the interview session. Sometime, respondents were in a hurry, therefore, the answers might not correspond to their feelings. For this reason some of responses made

by respondents are being discarded because it is irrelevant to the research findings (i.e. traffic jam).

## **5.3 Suggestions for Future Research**

For the future research, this research model can be used as reference for low-cost airline industry to formulate business strategy, especially its marketing plan involving marketing mix. Therefore, the future research can use some of the factors mentioned in this research can be used to examine consumer's behavior in the future. Moreover, the future research study could use a list of the questions that are in the form of other languages such as Thai, Chinese, Vietnamese, Japanese and Korean. Multilanguage set of questionnaire will ensure that respondents are able to provide unique experiences as well as distinguished input during the research study. Finally, the data collected from the research will pave the way for more development in the LCC segment and will offer benefits to customers as well as serve as the ground for sharing important information from consumer to business and business to business.



### REFERENCES

Airport of Thailand Public, (2012). The Global Gateway. Annual Report, Bangkok, pp.45-54.

Airport of Thailand Public, (2013). Annual Report, pp.28.

- Airport of Thailand Public, (2013) Aircraft statistic, http://aot.listedcompany.com/transport.html
- Anonymous, (2006). Easyjet and Ryanair flying high on the Southwest model, charting the ups and downs of low-cost carriers, Strategic Direction, Vol. 22 No. 6, pp. 18-21.
- Auh, S., & Johnson, M.D., (2005). Compatibility effects in evaluations of satisfaction and loyalty. Journal of Economic psychology, 26, pp.35-57.
- Aviation Strategy, (2003). Asia's emerging low cost carriers, Aviation Strategy, May, pp.2–5.
- Aviation Strategy, (2003). Continental barriers to LCC expansion, Aviation Strategy, January, p.2.
- Berry L.L., Zeithaml V.A. and Parasuraman A., (1990). Five Imperatives for Improving Service Quality, Sloan Management Review, Vol 31 No Summer, pp. 29-38
- Campbell, A., (1976). Subjective Measures of Well-Being. Institute for Social Research, University of Michigan, USA pp: 117-124.
- Carlsson, F., Löfgren, A., (2006). Airline choice, switching costs and frequent flyer programs, Applied Economics, Vol. 38, pp. 1469-1475.
- Chang, Y., H., Chen, F., Y., (2007). Relational benefits, switching barriers and loyalty, a study of airline customers in Taiwan, Journal of Air Transport Managem ent, Vol. 13, pp. 104-109.
- Chayphan, N. (2008). Relationships between Servicing Market Factors and Passengers' Satisfaction with on Board Beverage Service of Thai Airways

International Public Company Limited," Phranakhon Rajabhat University, Bangkok.

- Creswell, J., W., (2013). Qualitative inquiry and research design: Choosing among five approaches. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.
- Ctaira Chris Tarry, (2006). Analyst viewpoint managing the airline economic cycle. Washington, D.C., Air Transport Association of America (ATA)
- Cunningham, L.F., Young, C.E., Lee, M., (2002). Cross cultural perspectives of service quality and risk in air transport, Journal of Air Transportation, Vol. 7 No. 1, pp. 3-26.
- Denzin NK, Lincoln YS., (2000). Handbook of Qualitative Research. London: Sage Publications.
- Doganis, Rigas, (2002). Flying off course, the economics of international airlines. New York: Routledge.
- Dresner, M., (2006). Leisure versus business passengers, similarities, differences, and implications, Journal of Air Transport Management, Vol. 12, pp. 28-32.
- Dunn, G., (2009). Special report low cost carriers: Ready for battle. Airline Business, pp.56-62.
- Erfan Chowdhury, (2007). Low Cost Carriers: How Are They Changing the Market Dynamics of the U.S. Airline Industry?
- Evert de Boer, Ralph Browning, (2013). The Legacy Effect, Rethinking, Loyalty For Low-Cost Carriers Airline.
- Franke, M., (2004). Competition between network carriers and low-cost carriers: retreat battle or breakthrough to a new level of efficiency?, Journal of Air Transport Management, Vol. 10., pp. 15-21.
- Freiberg, Kevin and Jackie Freiberg, (1996). Nuts! Southwest airlines' crazy recipe for business and personal success. Austin: Brad Press Inc.
- Gilbert, D., Child, D., Bennett, M., (2001). A qualitative study of the current practices of 'no-frills' airlines operating in the UK. Journal of Vacation Marketing 7, pp.302–315.
- Hsieh, H.-F., and Shannon, S.E., 2005. Three approaches to qualitative content analysis. Qualitative Health Research, 15(9), 1277-1288.

- IATA, (2007). Corporate air travel survey: edition 2008, International Air Transport A ssociation.
- Ionides, N., (2001). Asian evolution, Airline Business, March, pp.74–75.
- John F., O'Connell & George Williams, (2005). Passengers' perceptions of low cost airlines and full service carriers: A case study involving Ryanair, Aer Lingus, Air Asia and Malaysia Airlines, Journal of Air Transport Management 11, pp. 259–272.
- Kleymann, Birgit, and Hannu Seristo, (2004). Managing Strategic Airline alliances. Burlington, VT, Ashgate Publishing Ltd.
- Kotler, P., (2013). Marketing Management, The Millennium Edition, Prentice-Hall, Upper Saddle River.
- Kvale, Steinar, (1983). The qualitative research interview: A phenomenological and a hermeneutical mode of understanding. Journal of Phenomenological Psychology, 14, pp.171-196.
- Lawton, T., (2002). Cleared for Take-Off—Structure and Strategy in the Low Fare Airline Business. Ashgate, Aldershot.
- Leedy, P. D., (1997). Practical research: planning and design (6th ed.). Upper Saddle River, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc.
- Maslow, A.H., (1954). Motivation and Personality, Harper, New York, 1954, pp.236.

Maslow, A.H., (1943). A theory of human motivation. Psychol. Rev., 50: pp.370-396.

- Mason, K.J., Alamdari, F., (2007). EU network carriers, low cost carriers and consumer behaviour: a Delphi study of future trends, Journal of Air Transport Management, Vol. 13, pp. 299-310.
- Mason, K., (2001). Marketing low-cost airline services to business
- McMillan, J. H. & Schumacher, S., (1993). Research in education: A conceptual understanding.
- Md Atiqur Rahman Sarker, Chowdhury Golam Hossan and Laila Zaman. (2012). Sustainability and Growth of Low Cost Airlines: An Industry Analysis in Global Perspective.
- Oliver, R., L., (1980). A cognitive model of the antecedents and consequences of satisfaction decisions. Journal of Marketing 17, pp.460-469.

- O'Toole, K. & Pilling, M., (2003). Marketing Mix, Airline Business, December, pp.70–73.
- Oyewole, P., Choudhury, P. (2006). Purchase situations and the level of importance that consumers attach to services in the airline industry, Services Marketing Quarterly, Vol. 28, No. 1, pp. 19-34.
- Park, J.W., Robertson, R., Wu, C.L., (2006). Modelling the impact of airline service quality and marketing variables on passengers' future behavioral intentions, Transportation Planning and Technology, Vol. 29 No. 5, pp. 359-381.
- Pompl, W., Schuckert, M.R., Möller, C. (2003), Zur Differenzierung der Geschäftsmodelleim Personenluftverkehr: die Full Service Network Carrier, Tourism Journal, retrieved Jan. 15, 2009.
- Rafiq, M., & Ahmed, P. K., (1992). Using the 7Ps as a generic marketing mix. Intelligence, (1), pp.4-15.
- Sereerat, S., (1995). Consumer Behavior. Visitpattana Publishing Company, Bangkok, ISBN: 9745223719.
- Sittichai Charoensettasilp & Chong Wu, (2013). Thai Passengers' Satisfaction after Receiving Services from Thailand's Domestic Low Cost Airline, International Journal of u- and e- Service, Science and Technology Vol.6, No.6, pp.97-110 http://dx.doi.org/10.14257/ijunesst.2013.6.6.11
- Sittichai Charoensettasilp & Chong Wu, (2014). Thai Consumer's Expectation and satisfaction of services Obtained from Domestic Low-cost Airlines, Journal of Applied Sciences 14(1): 1-9, ISSN 18812-5654 / DOI: 10.3923/jas.2014.1.9
- Sittichai Charoensettasilp & Chong Wu, (2013). Attitude and Needs of Thai People in Selecting Domestic Low-Cost Airlines, American Journal of Industrial and Business Management, 2013, 3, pp. 178-184. http://dx.doi.org/10.4236/ajibm.2013.32023 Published Online April 2013 (http://www.scirp.org/journal/ajibm)
- Sripromnil, M. (2008). Factors on Marketing Mix Affecting Customers' Final Decisions on Airline Services of Airport Authority of Thailand

Cooperation in Muang District Chiang mai Province, Chiangrai Rajabhat University, Chiangrai.

- Stephen Shaw, (1990). Airline Marketing & Management. London: Pitman Publishing.
- Thanasupsin, K. and S. Chaichana, (2007). Factors affecting model selection between low cost airlines and Thai Airways. J. KMITNB., 17: 21-29.
- Thomas, G., (2003). In tune with low fares in Malaysia, Air Transport World, May, pp.45–46.
- Turner, S., (2003). Comparison of passenger profiles and selection criteria: a study of London-Amsterdam passengers, ATRS, Conference, Toulouse. URL: http://www.pompl.net/Pompl/Luftverkehr/Downloads/TJ\_Geschaeft smodelle.pdf.
- Udomkitti, V., (2006). Factors Influencing Customers Buying Decisions Process of Low-Cost Airline Services in Thailand. University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce, Bangkok, Thailand, ISBN: 974-677-622-3.
- Weerawit Lerrthaitrakul and Vinai Panjakajornsak, (2014). The Impact of Electronic
   Word-of-Mouth Factors on Consumers' Buying Decision-Making
   Processes in the Low Cost Carriers: A Conceptual Framework,
   International Journal of Trade, Economics and Finance, Vol. 5, No. 2.
- Wiersma, W., (1995). Research methods in education: An introduction (6<sup>th</sup> ed.). Boston: Allyn and Bacon.
- Yelkur, R., (2000). Customer satisfaction and the services marketing mix. Journal of professional services marketing, 21(1)
- Zhicheng Qin & Piraphong Foosiri. (2013). The Factors Influencing Low-Cost Airline Passenger Satisfaction and Loyalty in Bangkok, Thailand, วารสารการตลาด และการสื่อสารปีที่ 1 ฉบับที่ 1, มกราคม – มีนาคม 2556.